
I’On Assembly 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

Thursday, February 13, 2025 

Executive Session 5:30 P.M. 

Board Meeting 6:00 P.M. 

 
AGENDA 

 

    Discussion & Topic      Decision (Y/N) 

Homeowner Forum   

 

Call to Order 

 

Approval of Dec. 16 Minutes         Y 

& Jan. 29 Organizational Minutes           

 

President’s Report    

 

Treasurer Report  Review 1/31/25 Executive Dashboard    N 

     

 

Amenities Report   

 

Landscape/Infrastructure Report 

    Vote to approve proposal from Charleston Tree Experts  Y 

    for enhancing the Sycamores in Perseverance Park 

 

    Vote to approve proposal for replacing rotted marsh  Y 

    trail foot bridge on Hopetown 

 

    Discuss right-of-ways       N 

Covenants Report 

 

IDC Report 

 

Communications Report 

 

Secretary Report 

 

Adjournment 



I’On Assembly Board of Trustees Meeting 

December 16, 2024 Board Meeting Minutes 

 

Members Present: Bob Adams, Lon Waggoner, Stephen Wood, Roy Rathbun, 

and Julie Hussey.  

Absent: Donna Davis & Tom O’Brien 

Management Company: Emily Simpson & Mary James  

Homeowner Forum: Amy Sage, 63 Joggling & BJ Barnes, 27 Mobile. 

Leah Stackpole submitted the following comments to be included in the meeting 

minutes.  

 

Over the past two weeks I have observed what appears to be different colored 

spray paint on the Marsh Trail. This paint has been used to mark dog feces that 

has not been picked up. As a responsible dog owner that not only picks up after my 

own dog as well as others I have a few questions. 

- Is something formal happening at the Marsh Trail where dog feces is being 

marked?  

- If yes, please advise the reason for this and more importantly is this paint 

biodegradable and environmentally friendly to the marsh wildlife as well as our 

pets? 

The Board responded that the HOA is not doing this and is likely a resident. 

Amy Sage attended the meeting simply to listen in. 

BJ Barnes joined to express concerns surrounding the IDC. She introduced herself 

and provided some background regarding her time on the IDC. She expressed 

significant concerns regarding the approval process and how frustrating it is. She 

stated that the IDC concentrates on small items that should not be taken into 

consideration. She pointed out one particular example where a resident spent 

$10,000 in design review fees and being unapproved after 6 months of back and 

forth reviews with the IDC. She noted hearing numerous complaints from residents 

around the neighborhood regarding the IDC process and noted many other 

architects not willing to do work in I’On. She expressed her desire for the 

committee to be reorganized to help homeowners in a more efficient way. She 



stated she’d be happy to share her thoughts and ideas on how to make the process a 

more positive experience and be more client friendly. She also suggested sending a 

survey to residents after they go through the IDC process.  

Call to Order: 6:19PM by Bob Adams 

Approval of Minutes:   

Lon made a motion to approve the November 18, 2024 I’On Assembly Meeting 

Minutes. Roy Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously.  

President’s Report:  

No Report. 

Amenity Report: 

No Report. 

Treasurer Report:  

Bob noted that everything is tracking along well. He mentioned that no homes 

have closed in November, so transfer fees have not increased but a few homes are 

scheduled to close in December.  

Bob went on to state that the finance committee would like to recommend the 

approval of transferring some funds. 

Bob made a motion to approve transferring the transfer fees collected in 2024 from 

First Citizens operating account to Morgan Stanley reserve account in early 

January. Lon Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously.  

Bob made a motion to approve transferring $100,000 from First Citizens operating 

account to Morgan Stanley reserve account to be used solely for playground 

expenditures in 2025. Roy Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously. 

Bob made a motion to approve transferring funds from First Citizens operating 

account once the account exceeds $250,000 the excess to be transferred to Morgan 

Stanley operating account to obtain higher interest rate return. Lon Seconded. All 

in favor. Motion passed unanimously. 

Lastly, it was noted that the Trust has now provided the $30,000 check for their 

contribution in the amphitheater rebuild. 

 



Landscape and Infrastructure Report: 

Roy first reported that the committee would like to present a proposal to install 

lighting at the amphitheater. The Board inquired if the lighting could be set on 

timers that had the ability to be adjusted. Roy responded that this has been included 

in the proposal.   

Roy made a motion to approve the proposal from Moonlighting for installing 

lighting at the Amphitheater. Bob Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed 

unanimously.  

Roy made a motion to approve proposal from Ruppert for enhancing the 

landscaping on the north-west corner of Westlake. Bob Seconded. All in favor. 

Motion passed unanimously.   

Julie brought up conversations she has heard regarding the request to revamp the 

bocce ball court and hopes for this to be done some time next year. Roy responded 

that the committee will add this to their agenda to discuss further.   

Roy went on to provide an update on the bulkhead. He stated that JGT has received 

the soil test results and they do not see anything that will adversely impact the 

project. GEL Engineering has completed an as-built survey for the bulkhead 

replacement and submitted it to JGT.  Roy stated that he received assistance from 

Vince Graham which was very helpful regarding some water mitigation concerns 

along with other examples of the TOMP investing in other neighborhood’s 

infrastructure. He thanked Vince for this information. 

Lastly, he stated items that have been completed since the last meeting which are 

included in the Board packet.  

Covenants Report:  

Lon reported that it is a slow time of year for covenants with only 8 properties 

currently being actively sent compliance letters.  

IDC Liaison Report:  

Stephen reported on IDC actions that are included in the Board packet.  

He asked if Kristine could pull the report for the property on N. Shelmore that BJ 

brought up during the homeowner’s forum.  

 



Communications Committee:  

Julie stated that the committee met this past week and are working on finalizing a 

survey to send to the community. The survey will include requests to gather the 

demographics of the neighborhood along with resident’s feedback surrounding 

events that are held throughout the neighborhood.  

Secretary:  

No Report 

Other Business:  

There being no further business to come before the Board of Trustees, the meeting 

adjourned at 6:54pm. The next meeting will be the annual meeting held on January 

21, 2024 at 6:00PM.   

 

Respectfully submitted by____________________ 

Julie Hussey, Board Secretary 
 



 

Board Organizational Meeting 

January 29, 2025 

 
Members Present: 

Lon Waggoner, Stephen Wood, Tom O’Brien, Donna Davis, Roy Rathbun, Joe Barnes and Bob Adams 

Management Present: 

Emily Simpson 
 

 
Tom called the meeting to order at 8:59am. 

 

 
Election of Officers: 

President: Tom O’Brien was nominated. Bob Seconded. There being no other nominations, Tom O’Brien 

was elected by unanimous consent. 

Vice President: Bob Adams was nominated. Lon Seconded. There being no other nominations, Bob 

Adams was elected by unanimous consent. 

Treasurer: Bob Adams was nominated. Lon Seconded. There being no other nominations, Bob Adams 

was elected by unanimous consent. 

Secretary/Communications: Lon nominated Joe Barnes. Bob Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

Committee Assignments: 

Landscape & Infrastructure: Lon nominated Roy Rathbun. Bob Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed 

unanimously. 

Covenants: Bob nominated Lon Waggoner. Stephen Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously. 

Amenities: Stephen nominated Donna Davis. Bob Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously. 

IDC: Bob nominated Stephen Wood. Lon Seconded. Majority of the Board were in favor. Motion passed 5-
1.



 

 

 
Tom made a motion to approved the seventh amendment to the CCR’s as the amendment was 

presented to titleholders in the mailing packet for the annual meeting. Stephen seconded the motion. 

All in favor. Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

Bob made a motion to move into executive session at 9:18am. Lon Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

 
Lon made a motion to move out of executive session and back into open session at 9:42am. Bob 

Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 
There being no further business, Bob made a motion to adjourn at 9:42am. Roy Seconded. All in favor. 

Motion passed unanimously. 



Executive Dashboard 1.31.25

Executive Dashboard 1/31/2025

Annual YTD YTD

Summary Budget Actual Budget

Income Statement 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 Jan-25 Jan-25

Assessments 914,400$           1,066,800$           1,143,000$    1,254,000$  1,368,000$  1,368,000$  114,000$     114,000$       

IDC Revenue 34,300               48,475                  37,750           38,700         79,300         40,000         -$             3,333             

Dock Closure Rev 16,800               26,600                  39,550           26,600         64,250         50,000         -$             4,167             

Interest 23,954               22                         2                    6,312           17,970         5,000           608$            417                

Misc Income 32,879               17,350                  28,367           20,326         32,395         13,025         4,503$         502                

  Total Revenue 1,022,333$        1,159,246$           1,248,668$    1,345,938$  1,561,915$  1,476,025$  119,112$     122,419$       

Payroll, Administrative, IDC 286,826$           299,562$              295,344$       317,785$     339,280$     337,507$     25,170$       25,732$         

Legal & Professional 48,162               73,979                  100,000         134,936       46,765         75,000         -$             6,250             

Landscaping & Maintenance 422,077             405,154                395,669         443,616       475,538       470,450       21,797$       33,797           

Utilities, Insurance, taxes 95,729               138,225                151,116         181,083       206,554 231,635 8,511$         8,053             

Reserve Contribution 41,500               192,192                202,033         208,520       220,049       241,052       -$             -                 

Capital Projects 62,650               46,367                  28,096           50,000         60,000         100,000       -$             -                 

  Total Expenses 957,994$           1,155,479$           1,172,258$    1,335,940$  1,348,186$  1,455,644$  55,479$       73,832$         

  Net Surplus 64,339$             3,767$                  76,411$         9,998$         213,729$     20,381$       63,633$       48,587$         

Total Operating Assets 1/31/25 $1,563,004.00

Total Reserve Assets 1/31/25 $3,223,753.92

Creek Club Lease Termination 1/31/25 $1,000,000

Transfer Fees 1/31/25 $4,155.00

Prior Year's Actuals



Amenities Report  

February 13, 2025 

 

Boat Docks- 

- Osprey Painting & Resurfacing will be painting the dock railings and pierhead starting on 

February 27th and will finish the first week of March. They will not be working on February 

28th, March 1 or 2 due to weddings at the Creek Club. 

 

Playgrounds- 

- Just for Fun Playgrounds completed the renovation of the Ramble Playground and the 

enhancement at the Hopetown Playground. 

 

 

 

 

 

Ramble Playground 

 

 

Hopetown Playground 



Landscape & Infrastructure Report 

February 13, 2025 

 

 

Updates since January Meeting 

- Moonlighting installed lighting at the Westlake amphitheater and added up-lighting on the 5 

oak trees along Latitude Lane. 

- Ruppert Landscaping completed the enhancement on the north-west corner of Westlake, by 

the amphitheater.  

- Ruppert/S&S Enterprises installed a new boardwalk on the marsh trail along Saturday Rd. 

- Charleston Tree Company has begun pruning and removing deadwood from trees in the 

Assembly’s common areas and parks.  

- Tidal South Pressure washing cleaned the walkway in the Rookery off of Sowell St.  

 

Eastlake Bulkhead Update 

- JGT has begun working on the initial design of the replacement wall and based on the soils, the 

new wall will need to be anchored vs being a cantilevered wall. 

- JGT received an email from the Town of Mount Pleasant stating that a stormwater analysis of 

the lakes and the development is not needed for the replacement. The Town determined that 

the lake is big enough that the loss of volume will be minimal and not impact the drainage 

system. 

- The Tomblin Company will be working on the landscape plan once JGT has the design and 

knows the limits of the disturbed area and what will need to be replanted and/or rebuilt. 

- Barrier Island Engineering will be completing all of the land disturbance permits and any revised 

drainage design required by the Town. 

 

 



IDC Actions 

Month: January 2025 

 

Application Type # Reviewed 
(M/YTD) 

#Approved w/o 
Conditions 
(M/YTD) 

#Approved w/ 
Conditions 
(M/YTD) 

# Denied 
(M/YTD) 

Maintenance & Repairs (Apprvd. By NDC) 4/4 4/4 - -                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

Minor Exterior Changes 1/1 1/1 - - 

Minor Landscape Changes - - - - 

Major Landscape Changes - - - - 

Structural Changes <625 sf 2/2 - - 2/2 

Structural Changes >625 sf - - - - 

New Home Construction Preliminary Review - - - - 

New Home Construction Final Review - - - - 
 

Application Type # of Individual Properties 
Reviewed YTD 

# Eventually 
Approved 

 

# Denied 
 

Minor Exterior Changes 1 1 - 

Minor Landscape Changes - - - 

**Major Landscape Changes - - - 

**Structural Changes < 625 sf 1  1 

**Structural Changes > 625 sf - - - 

**New Home Construction Preliminary Review - - - 

**New Home Construction Final Review - - - 

Total Individual Properties: 2 1 1 

 

** These submissions typically require multiple reviews before approval.  

 



 
                                                                          IDC Decision Appeals to BOA 

February 13, 2025 
 

# Decisions Appealed (M/YTD) # IDC Decisions Upheld 
(M/YTD) 

#IDC Decisions Overturned 
(M/YTD) 

1/1 0/0 1/1 

 



February 13, 2025 Communications Report 

The Communications Committee convened on Monday, February 10, to 
outline their goals for 2025. The committee collectively agreed that the 
primary focus for this year should be on enhancing communication with and 
fostering greater engagement among I’On residents. 

As part of this effort, a community survey was distributed to residents on 
January 17, yielding 142 responses. The survey gathered general demographic 
data about the neighborhood and solicited residents' feedback on their 
interests, the events they regularly attend, and the activities they would like to 
see introduced. Please refer to the attached document for a summary of the 
survey results. 

Additionally, the committee discussed plans to continue hosting quarterly 
events designed to provide both new and longtime residents with a deeper 
understanding of I’On’s history and its various organizations, including the 
I’On Trust, the IDC, and I’On at Home. 

Work has also begun on the 2026 community directory. This directory offers a 
great opportunity for local businesses to connect with I’On residents. If you 
are interested in advertising in the 2026 directory, please contact Mary James 
at mary.ion@ravenelassociates.com 

 

 


	February 13 2025 BOT Agenda (002)
	DRAFT December 16 2024 Board Meeting Minutes MJ ES
	1.29.25-Board-Organizational-Meeting-Minutes
	Amenities Report February 
	LI Board Report February 13
	January 2025 IDC Report
	IDC Decision Appeals to BOA February
	February 2025 Communications Report Joe
	L&I Proposals.pdf
	I'On Sycamore Care-Proposal #47304.pdf
	Ravenel Associates
	TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	Thank you for choosing SavATree! The following terms and conditions, together with the terms, prices, and specifications outlined on your estimate, proposal, and/or services agreement and Plant Health Care and/or Lawn Care Datasheet (“Datasheet”), if applicable for your state, constitute your entire agreement with SavATree, LLC; Lou Giroud Tree Service, LLC; Arborwell, LLC; Barrett’s Tree Service, Inc.; Lawns Unlimited, LTD; and all related DBAs (collectively referred to as “SavATree”) (“Agreement”).
	PERFORMANCE BY SAVATREE – Our Plant Health Care and Lawn programs are designed to manage and not eradicate weeds, insects, mites, disease and deer browsing. Horticulturally tolerable levels of insects, mites, disease and deer browse may still be present after treatments. Epidemic infestations may require additional visits at additional cost to you, pending your approval. Each time we are on your property, an evaluation card will be left or emailed indicating the service(s) performed and, if necessary, any additional recommendations and precautions to be observed. Remeasurement of your lawn, trees or shrubs may also be done if there is a discrepancy between the original estimate and the actual square footage or product(s) required. You will be notified of any price adjustments for future services.
	Work crews will arrive at the job site unannounced unless otherwise noted herein. The Datasheet provides approximate and alternate dates of our service. SavATree shall not be liable for damage or losses due to delays for weather or causes beyond our control, or for failure to observe precaution notices. By accepting this Agreement and engaging our services, you accept that every day during the Agreement’s term is a day on which applications may be applied, and you are continuously on notice that SavATree will perform applications on any day during the term of this Agreement if any other day becomes unnecessary or infeasible for performance (due to weather, scheduling conflicts, or weed, insect, mite and disease cycles) in which case you waive SavATree’s performance on such a day. Absent extraordinary circumstances, you request that SavATree not further contact you concerning dates of application as such further contact would be a burden to you.
	You understand that, in connection with rendering our services to you, SavATree may be required to bring trucks and other heavy equipment onto your driveway and other parts of your property. SavATree operates under the assumption that any and all parts of your property onto which we must bring such equipment can sustain the presence, weight, and movement of that equipment, and you hereby hold SavATree harmless for, and agree not to bring any claims against SavATree as a result of, any damage or degradation to any part of your property that results from the presence on it of such equipment.
	You understand that certain work that SavATree will render for you, such as dismantling large trees, will likely have a visible impact on your lawn and other parts of your property (e.g., divots, holes, sawdust, etc.). While we will do our best to minimize, mitigate, and repair any such impact, you hereby hold SavATree harmless for, and agree not to bring any claims against SavATree as a result of, any such impact on your property.
	You understand that after removal of stumps/roots that some shrubs/trees will continue to produce sprouts that may require multiple treatments, at additional cost to you (and at your election), for control and that these treatments may result in damage to nearby plants/shrubs/trees and that you hereby hold SavATree harmless for, and agree not to bring any claims against SavATree as a result of, any damage to nearby plants/shrubs/trees.
	The following provision applies to New York and Minnesota clients only: The term of this Agreement shall be for twenty years from the date it is signed by you; however this Agreement may be terminated without penalty at any time by either party. Minnesota clients are required to cancel this Agreement upon sale of property serviced with this Agreement.
	WORKMANSHIP – All work is performed in a professional manner by experienced personnel outfitted with the appropriate tools and equipment to complete the job properly. Our work meets and exceeds the guidelines and standards set forth by ANSI (the American National Standards Institute) A300. As part of the Arbor Patrol Program, we may perform some minor deep root watering, minor fertilization and/or minor pruning of insect infested or diseased limbs. Any additional major work to be performed will be evaluated during a follow-up site inspection by an arborist who will submit an estimate, proposal, and/or services agreement for client approval. Recommendations are intended to minimize or reduce hazardous conditions associated with trees. The owner or owner’s representative is responsible for the annual scheduling of the required inspection of any supplemental tree support systems. You have a duty to inspect your property within fifteen (15) calendar days of service and provide written notice within that time of alleged damage of any nature. If written notice is not provided within that time, you agree that any claims alleging damage of any nature and/or rights to withhold future payments under this Agreement are waived.
	NO WARRANTIES – Except as expressly set forth in this agreement, no representations, warranties, or guarantees, express or implied, are intended with regard to products used or services performed.
	INSURANCE – SavATree is insured for liability resulting from injury to persons or negligent damage to property, and all its employees are covered by Workers’ Compensation Insurance. A certificate of insurance is available upon request.
	OWNERSHIP – By accepting this Agreement and engaging our services, you warrant that all trees, plant material and property on which work is to be performed are either owned by you or that permission for the work has been obtained from the owner by you. It is further agreed that the property owner or representative shall be responsible for obtaining any and all permits which may be required by local authorities. You hereby hold SavATree harmless from all claims for damages resulting from your failure to obtain such permits.
	TERMS OF PAYMENTS – The total cost estimates within this Agreement are valid for 60 days unless otherwise noted. All invoices are payable upon receipt. A deposit of 50% may be required prior to the commencement of General Tree Care work. Planting and transplanting services require a deposit of 50% at the time of authorization of such services. A finance charge at the maximum rate allowed under applicable state law will be added to invoices after 30 days. Your next service may not be performed if your account is past due. Past due balances void any guarantees and/or warranties. If outside assistance is used to collect the account, you are responsible for all costs associated with the collection including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs. Sales tax, if applicable, will be added to the amounts of this Agreement per your local and state tax jurisdiction. Should any terms of this Agreement be amended, subsequent payment for our services shall constitute your written acceptance thereof. The following provision applies to New York clients only: By accepting this Agreement and engaging our services, you accept that the annual program total cost shall increase on January 1st of each year of this Agreement by the annual increase in the CPI (CPI-U) published on www.bls.gov for twelve months ending September 30, unless otherwise agreed, with a minimum annual increase of 1%. Further, you hereby acknowledge that you have received notice of and understand the total cost of SavATree’s services.
	CONCEALED CONTINGENCIES – You agree to pay SavATree on a time and materials basis for any additional work required to complete the job occasioned by concrete or other foreign matter; stinging insect nests in the tree, trees, or branches; rock, pipe, or underground utilities encountered in excavations; and work not described within this Agreement, or any other condition not apparent in estimating the work specified. You are responsible for advising SavATree regarding the location of underground utilities in the area where work is to be done, including, but not limited to, notifying the proper authorities and marking underground utilities and/or any concealed object. SavATree shall not be responsible for damage to such utilities or concealed objects. Furthermore, SavATree shall not be required to perform any services under this Agreement in the event SavATree deems the conditions are such that its services cannot be safely performed and/or performance becomes impractical.
	STATE NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS – Certain states require that specific product information be submitted to you. If required, attached to this Agreement is our Datasheet, which provides such information. The Datasheet also can be found at www.savatree.com/ds/index.html. Massachusetts clients should see the Consumer Information Bulletin at www.savatree.com/ds/macnsminfo. You have the right to receive specific date pre-notification for certain applications in certain states. Your written authorization on the Authorization Page of this Agreement waives any pre-notification requirement unless noted otherwise. In New York State, the property owner or owner’s agent may request the specific date or dates of the application(s) to be provided and, if so requested, the pesticide applicator or business must inform of the specific dates and include that date or dates in the contract. In Wisconsin: Upon request, any of the following will be provided prior to a pesticide application: brand, product, or common chemical name and a copy of the label of each pesticide that may be applied; date of application (may be provided orally, if you agree); and the name, business address, and telephone number for more information about the application.
	LIMIT OF LIABILITY – SavATree’s total liability for any losses, damages, and expenses of any type whatsoever incurred by you or any of your guests, tenants, or invitees in connection with or resulting from SavATree’s services under this Agreement (“Losses”), which are caused by wrongful acts or omissions of SavATree, shall be limited solely to proven direct and actual damages in an aggregate amount not to exceed the amounts actually paid to SavATree hereunder. In no event will SavATree be liable for special, indirect, incidental or consequential damages, irrespective of the form or cause of action, in contract, tort or otherwise, whether or not the possibility of such damages has been disclosed to SavATree in advance or could have reasonably been foreseen by SavATree.
	FORCE MAJEURE – SavATree shall not be liable for any failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement if such failure is caused by acts of God, earthquake, war, attack, strikes, revolutions, lack or failure of transportation facilities, laws, or governmental regulations or other causes that are beyond the reasonable control of such party.
	ARBITRATION – Any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof, the work performed by SavATree for you, and/or any commission or omission by SavATree, shall be submitted to and determined by arbitration before a single arbitrator pursuant to the Commercial Rules of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitration shall be held at the American Arbitration Association office closest to the site at which SavATree performed the underlying services for you. The arbitration award shall be final and binding. Judgment on the award may be entered in any Court having competent jurisdiction thereof.
	CUSTOMER REFERRAL PROGRAM – Word of mouth is our best advertising. When you are satisfied with our services, please tell a friend. Each time you refer a new customer to us who meets with an arborist, we will send you a thank you gift.
	YOUR SATISFACTION IS IMPORTANT – Should our service fall short of your expectations, please contact us immediately and we will do everything we can to make it right.
	Rev. 10/4/23






